SENATE FI NANCE COWM TTEE
March 31, 2016
9:03 a.m

9:03:42 AM

CALL TO ORDER

Co-Chair MacKinnon called the Senate Finance Committee
nmeeting to order at 9:03 a.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senat or Anna MacKi nnon, Co- Chair
Senat or Pete Kelly, Co-Chair
Senator Peter M cciche, Vice-Chair
Senator dick Bishop

Senat or M ke Dunl eavy

Senat or Lyman Hof f man

Senat or Donny d son

VEMBERS ABSENT

None

ALSO PRESENT

Angel a Rodell, Executive Director, Alaska Permanent Fund
Corporation; Senator Lesil MQiire; Laura Achee, Director
of Communi cations and Adm nistration, Al aska Pernmanent Fund
Cor poration; Representative Lora Reinbold.

SUMVARY

SB 114 PERM FUND: EARNI NGS, DEPOSI TS, ACCOUNTS

SB 114 was HEARD and HELD in committee for
further consideration.

SB 128 PERM FUND: DEPGCSI TS; DI VI DEND; EARNI NGS

SB 128 was HEARD and HELD in commttee for
further consideration.

#sbl114
#sb128
SENATE BILL NO 114




"An Act relating to deposits into the dividend fund
and relating to the Al aska permanent fund."

SENATE BILL NO. 128

"An Act relating to the Alaska permanent fund;
relating to appropriations to the dividend fund;
relating to incone of the Al aska permanent fund;
relating to the earnings reserve account; relating to
the Al aska permanent fund dividend; making conform ng
anmendnents; and providing for an effective date."

9: 04: 56 AM

ANGELA RODELL, EXECUTIVE DI RECTOR, ALASKA PERMANENT FUND
CORPORATI ON, presented four sets of slides (copy on file).

Co-Chair MacKi nnon noted that the two bills would Iimt or
change how the pernmanent fund dividend (PFD) was
cal cul at ed.

V5. Rodel | shared that she hoped to address sone
m sinformation regarding the forecast of the permanent
f und.

M. Rodell |ooked at slide 1, "Transfers to principal as of
June 30, 2015":

M neral royalties: $15.9 billion

Transfers from General Fund: $2.7 billion

Lawsuit settlenent proceeds: $169 million

Inflation proofing transfer: $16.2 billion

Transfers from Earni ngs Reserve: $4.2 billion
9:08: 45 AM

Ms. Rodell highlighted slide 2, "The Al aska Constitution”

Article I X, Section 15

Al aska Per manent Fund

Section 15. Al aska Pernmanent Fund

At least twenty-five percent of all mneral |ease
rentals, royalties, royalty sale proceeds, federa
m neral revenue sharing paynents and bonuses received
by the State shall be placed in a permanent fund, the
principal of which shall be wused only for those

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 2 03/31/16 9:03 A M



i ncome- producing investnments specifically designated
by law as eligible for permanent fund investnents. All
incone from the permanent fund shall be deposited in
the general fund unless otherwise provided by |[|aw
[Effective February 21, 1977].

Ms. Rodell stressed that the constitutional anmendment was
requi red, because the state had a prohibition against
dedi cated funds. She explained that the anmendnent was very
straight forward. She read the anmendnment. She stated that
the bills would anend the statutory framework

Ms. Rodell discussed slide 3, "Statutory findings":

Section 37.13.020. Findings. The people of the state,
by constitutional amendnent , have required the
pl acenent of at |east 25 percent of all mneral |ease
rentals, royalties, royalty sale proceeds, and federal
m neral revenue sharing paynents and bonuses received
by the state into a permanent fund. The |legislature
finds with respect to the fund that

(1) the fund should provide a means of conserving
a portion of the state's revenue from m neral
resources to benefit all generations of Al askans;

(2) the fund's goal should be to maintain safety
of principal while maximzing total return;

(3) the fund should be used as a savings device
managed to allow the nmaxi mum use of disposable
income from the fund for purposes designated by
I aw.
Ms. Rodel | addressed slide 4, "Investnment Authority":
AS 37.13.120 “Prudent Investor Rule”

- Exerci se j udgnment and care of simlar
institutional investors,

-whil e considering preservation of the purchasing
power of the fund over tinme, and

-while maximzing the expected total return from
both incone and the appreciation of capital.

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 3 03/31/16 9:03 A M



9:13:14 AM

Ms. Rodell stressed that there would be no changes in the
sections. Therefore, there would continue to be investnent
in the fund.

Senator Dunl eavy |ooked at slide 1, and queried additiona
| egislative action to add noney to the fund. M. Rodell
replied that the slide was the total of all the |egislative
deci si ons.

Co-Chair MacKinnon referred to a slide from a previous
nmeeting, which showed the PFD anount distribution, and
asserted that the legislature had contributed nearly $20
billion above the nandatory 25 percent contribution.

Senat or Dunl eavy stated that he had m sread his notes.

Ms. Rodel | shared that there was a reference of
approximately $20 mllion.

Senator Bishop stated that M. Rodell had answered his
previ ous question. He wondered whether the board had
conducted an analysis. M. Rodell responded that the board
had not wundertaken that endeavor, because the investnent
decisions and timng caused a difficult analysis.

Senator O son |ooked at the ten-year period, which had
doubl ed the fund doubling in value. Ms. Rodell stated that
there was an inportant change in that doubled the fund.

9:17:18 AM

Ms. Rodell [|ooked at the investnent returns, and shared
that there had been sone confusion regarding the forecast.
She expl ai ned that, previously, the permanent fund provided
a forecast at the request of Departnment of Revenue (DOR).
She stressed that the forecast was intended for the
suppl enental budget and operating budget changes. She
furthered that the forecast also provided the previous year
nunbers in order to calculate the upcom ng PRD payout. The
ten year forecast had shifted further, so there were two
di fferent rates.

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 4 03/31/16 9:03 A M



Senat or Hoffrman queried the institution year of inflation
proofing. M. Rodell replied that it was instituted in
1982.

Senator Hoffrman noted that, since 1982 there was $16.2
billion deposited to the fund. He queried the total
realized anount in the reserve account. M. Rodell agreed
to provide that information. She deferred to Ms. Achee.

9:20: 56 AM

LAURA ACHEE, DI RECTOR OF COVMUNI CATI ONS AND ADM NI STRATI ON
ALASKA PERVMANENT FUND CORPORATI ON, i ntroduced hersel f.

Senator Hoffrman queried the anobunt of deposits in the
reserve since its inception. M. Achee agreed to provide
that i nformation

Co-Chair Kelly queried the managenent statuses for paying
out annuities. He felt that 6 percent was a high nunber.
Ms. Rodell stated that the board of trustees had a target
real return of 5 percent. The 6 percent had a fixed
inflation adjustnent. She shared that the bar was set,
because of the long time horizon to weather the market
volatility. She remarked that the corporation was currently
even for the year, with three nonths remaining.

Co-Chair Kelly noted that the governor had hoped nove $3.1
billion fromthe CBR to the corpus of the permanent fund

so there would be $55 billion in the fund. He felt that the
CBR would not be put in the earnings reserve pot. He did
not feel the CBR would be put in the earnings reserve. He
wondered that would occur. Ms. Rodell replied that it would
make it difficult to keep the flat draw about at the $3.2
billion anount.

9:28: 07 AM

Co-Chair Kelly did not want there to be conflict wth the
governor. He asserted that the nodel nmust be POW, should
there be no draw fromthe CBR He felt that the governor's
pl an woul d not work wi thout the POW w t hdrawal .

Co-Chair MacKi nnon shared that there would be docunents
provided with nore information.

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 5 03/31/16 9:03 A M



Co-Chair Kelly felt that the docunment would answer many of
hi s questi ons.

Vice-Chair Mcciche noted that there was a politica

difficulty of the CBR wthdrawal. He remarked that
conservative managenent pushed a POW. He worried that the
fixed draw had too great a failure rate. He queried the
opinion of fixed draw versus POW. M. Rodell responded
that each had pros and cons. The pros for the fixed draw

required a plan. The proposed bill recognized that the
anount may need adjustnent. She stressed that there would
be $3 billion on July 1, and any other revenues of the

state would be directed to the earnings reserve. She felt
that there was trenmendous value in the known anount. She
stressed that there nay be challenges in the process for
adjusting the anobunt. She was unconfortable with putting a
fixed nunber into statute. She felt that the statutory
restraint made it difficult to adjust the fixed rate.

Co-Chair MacKinnon queried a position that the board may
have previous taken. M. Rodell replied that the board of
trustees had a resolution in place for a constitutional
anmendnent for a POW draw on the fund.

Co- Chair MacKi nnon wondered whether the |egislature had the
ability through statutory changes. M. Rodell replied in
the affirmative,.

Co- Chair MacKi nnon surnmised that the policy decisions were
either an annuity style or percent. She stated that both
were effective nodels, and there would be a fixed draw
versus sonething nore volatile. Ms. Rodell agreed.

9: 35: 27 AM

Vice-Chair Mcciche felt that a fixed draw may create an
artificial security and would detach fromthe volatility of
a static return. He wanted to be forced to "live within our
means"”, and not count on the absence of a failure rate.

Co-Chair Kelly noted that there was some discussion
regarding a spending cap, but he felt that spending caps
did not generally work. He stated that the constitutiona
spending cap that was flawed. He remarked that there could
be a percent of market value, and apply a cap that would
not exceed $3.6 billion in any year. He felt that there was
discipline in place to live within the neans.

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 6 03/31/16 9:03 A M



Co-Chair MacKi nnon stated that a docunent was distributed
to the members.

9:39:18 AM
AT EASE

9:40: 19 AM
RECONVENED

9:40: 21 AM

Co-Chair MacKinnon stated that the docunents would be
post ed onli ne.

Vice-Chair Mcciche felt that Co-Chair Kelly had a val uable
poi nt .

Senator Hoffman stated that the constitution was forcing
the legislature into the discussion. He stated that,
regardless of the forrmula, there would not be enough to
address the issues in the state. He remarked that there
were ot her neasures in play, and stressed that there should
be a total package option.

Senat or Bishop shared that the comrittee was funding a
budget with no capital. He stressed that the state should
not be dependent on the federal governnent.

Ms. Rodell offered that the limtations in place under each
bill were limted to the anpbunts available in the earnings
reserve account.

Senator Bishop noted that the only difference between the
two plans was that one guarantees a return on the pernmanent
fund, and the other one did not guarantee a return. M.
Rodel | disagreed. She felt that one plan would require a
set dollar anount be delivered regardless of the return on
the fund; and the other would take into account the actua
returns, and set a limt based on the percent of market
val ue.

Senat or Bi shop surm sed either plan would only payout what
the earnings reserve earns in one year. He felt that,
hypothetically, the earnings reserve was intended to
produce 3.3 percent. M. Rodell replied that stated that
the ramfications were unclear, so it did not matter how

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 7 03/31/16 9:03 A M



much noney the earnings reserve made in that year. She
stated that there would be an increase in the balance to
generate the funds, and hopefully exceed the draw.

Senator Bishop stressed that the balance in the earnings
reserve would self-regulate. Ms. Rodell agreed.

Senator Bishop felt that either plan required a healthy oil
and gas, and mning industry.

9:48: 12 AM

Co- Chair MacKi nnon wondered how the fixed rate draw or
percentage would affect earnings, or the asset allocation
under the permanent fund board's jurisdiction. M. Rodell
shared that, from an investnent return perspective, it is
better to lower the nunber of draws to extend the
investnment tinme. She shared that DOR was paying bills on a
daily basis, so there was a need for nore frequent draws.

Co-Chair MacKinnon asked if it was better establish a
menor andum of understanding with the admnistration to
create the timng, rather than drafted in statute. M.
Rodel | replied in the affirmative.

Co- Chair MacKi nnon noted that school districts were all owed
two draws per year, and she believed that the state was
advancing the noney. She wondered if there was interplay
there with the cash managenent. Ms. Rodell deferred to the
conmm ssi oner of Depar t ment of Education and  Early
Devel opnent ( DEED).

Co-Chair MacKinnon stated that DEED drew three to siXx
nmonths of value in interest, once the noney was transferred
in the formof the Base Student Allocation (BSA).

Ms. Rodell wondered if the corporation would nove to a
fixed asset in order to do annuity rather than a percentage
payout. Ms. Rodell stated that there was a focus on incone,
while maxim zing return. She shared that there were asset
cl asses, such as real estate, that generated great returns
for the state. She furthered that the asset «classes
generated trenmendous nonthly incone that was deposited in
the earnings reserve account. She explained that there
woul d be an examination of wutilizing the asset classes as
effectively as possible.

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 8 03/31/16 9:03 A M



9:55:16 AM

Co- Chair MacKinnon noted that there was no new noney for
Al aska, and there was a desire to use available assets in
order to help mtigate the loss nearly 80 percent of the
revenue. She |ooked at inflation proofing, which was paid
on an annual basis in order to keep it in today's dollar
value. She remarked that the wthdrawal were either the
annuity draw or fixed rate draw. M. Rodell replied that
inflation proofing was applied in 1982; at a tinme when the
fund was solely invested in bonds. It was an effort to
preserve the purchasing power of the fund. She explained
that, as bonds mature, cash was received. The cash may not
buy as many bonds at the tinme of initial investnent,
because of inflation proofing. She -explained that 20
percent of the portfolio was in fixed incone, so it would
benefit from inflation proofing. She remarked that the
ot her 80 percent of the portfolio included inflation in the
val uation and capital appreciation of the investnents.

Co- Chair MacKi nnon noted that Al askans were concerned about
protecting the corpus of the permanent fund. She stressed
that the corpus was protected under the constitution. She
gqueried a different way to protect or allocate the
permanent fund wunder a different nodel. She wondered
whether there was a short-term nmechanism to wuse the
inflation proofing to benefit Alaskans. Ms. Rodell replied
that the calculations were conducted under the current
st at ut e, and the operating budget held the various
appropriations under the calculations for inflation
proofing or the dividend. She stated that there was nothing
to prevent the legislature from making any general fund
appropriations back to the corpus. She furthered that the
corporation may ask for that appropriation in the future.

10: 00: 21 AM

Co- Chai r MacKi nnon wondered if the board had nuade
recommendations to the legislature on the wunrealized or
realized earnings. She also queried the «calculation
process. Ms. Rodell replied that the purpose of the
board's resolution in 2004 to ask for a constitutional
amendnent was because the 1976 anendnment stated that the
generally accepted accounted rules only provided for
realized inconme. Therefore the financial statenment incone
and the bond inconme could be easily tied and reconciled

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 9 03/31/16 9:03 A M



She remarked that the accounting community had made changes
with the increased conplexity of investnents and the
financial comunity. She shared that generally accepted
accounting principles required that the net incone include
both unrealized and realized gains in the calculation. She
furthered that there was a statutory definition, which only
recogni zed realized gains. She stressed that the realized
gains were the only noneys avail able for appropriation.

Senator O son queried the likelihood of not being able to
access the unrealized earnings. Ms. Rodell replied that in
2009 there was a loss in statutory net incone, and noney
was nmoved from the earnings reserve account to make the
corpus whole. She stressed that it was an unusua
occurrence.

Senator O son | ooked at the fixed draw, and noted that the
commi ssioner did not invest at one point. He remarked that
the state | ost noney because of that hesitancy. He wondered
whether a simlar situation would occur with the fixed
draw. Ms. Rodell replied that at the tinme of the hesitancy,
the CBR had significantly nore assets. She remarked that
the fixed draw would go directly into the G-, and have GF
authority.

Senat or O son wondered whether the scenario was likely to
occur. Ms. Rodell replied that it was less |likely to occur.

10: 06: 56 AM

Co- Chair MacKi nnon queried feedback regarding the concept
of rolling all investnment under one "roof" of the Al aska
Per manent Fund Corporation. She stated that there were two
entities: one under the |eadership of Departnent of Revenue
(DOR), and the Permanent Fund. She shared that she had
offered the idea of only one engine. M. Rodell replied
that she had been in conversations wth Conm ssioner
Hof f beck regarding that subject. She remarked that funds
had been consolidated as nuch as possible. She noted that
there was a question of whether there were efficiencies
that could benefit the state.

Co-Chair MacKinnon stated that there had been inserted

intent |anguage, with another way to create efficiencies
and managed in a safe way.

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 10 03/31/16 9:03 A M



Ms. Rodell shared that the total anobunt of statutory net
income that had been noved into the earnings reserve
account was $45.9 billion. She added that she had provided
sonme history of the Permanent Fund. She remarked that nany
guestions posed in the neeting had been asked in previous
years.

Co- Chair WMacKi nnon wondered whether the $45.9 billion was
paid in dividends. M. Achee replied that $20 billion was
nmoved into principal from the earnings reserve. She

furthered that another approxinmately $20 billion had been
paid in dividends since 1982. The renmining noney was
approximately $7 billion in the earnings reserve.

Co- Chair MacKi nnon asserted that the legislature did not
spend that noney. Ms. Achee agreed, and announced that the
| egi sl ature saved $20 billion.

SB 114 was HEARD and HELD in commttee for further
consi derati on.

SB 128 was HEARD and HELD in commttee for further
consi derati on.

#
ADJ OURNVENT
10:12:40 AM

The neeting was adjourned at 10:12 a. m

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 11 03/31/16 9:03 A M



